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Commodity Exc hange Act |
JUDGE SMITH

Y i veriRE

Defendant.

The United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission | .“Commission"), by its

attorneys, alleges as follows:

I. Summary

1, As is more fully alleged below, Defendz.mt Joseph P. Foley (“Defendant” or
“Foley”) has engaged in acts and practices which constfitute violations of the Commodity
Exchange Act, as amended (the “Act™), 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 e seq. (2001).

2. Specifically, from at least November 2000 through Ser tember 2002 (the
“Relevant Period”), Defendant violated Sections 6(c), 6(d) and 9(a)(2; of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§9,
13b and 13(a)(2), by directing those he supervised td deliver through t 1e mails or in intersiate
commerce by telegraph, telephore, wireless, or other means of commu nication, false or
misleading or knowingly inaccurate information concerning market in: ormation or conditions

that affected or tended to affect the price of natural gas, and by directir g those he supervised to
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deliver such false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate market in! srmation In an attempt to
manipulate the price of natura] gas, a commodity in inferstate comn erce.

3. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act, 7U.L.C. § 13a-1, the Commission
brings this action to enjoin such acts and practices, and compel com pliance with the provisions
of the Act. In addition, the Commission seeks civil penalties and suh other ancillary relief as
the Court deems necessary or appropriate in the circumstances.

II. Jurisdiction And Venue
4. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant {5 Section 6c¢ of the Act,
‘7U.S.C. § 13a-1, which authorizes the Commission to seek injuncti> e relief against any person
whenever it shall appear to the Commission that such person has eng aged, is engaging, or is
about to engage in any act or practice constituting a violation of any jrovision of the Act or any
rule, regulation or order thereunder.

5. Venue properly lies with this Court Pursuant to Sectio 1 6¢(¢) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.
§ 13a-1(e), in that Defendant’s acts and practices in violation of the £ ct occurred, are occurring,
or are about to occur within this District.

6. Unless restrained and enjoined by this Court, Defendar t is likely to continue to
engage in the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint or in simila acts and practiées, as
more fully described below.

III. The Parties

7. Plaintiff Commission is an independent federal regulati ry agency that is charged
with responsibility for administering and enforcing the provisions of tlie Act, 7 U.S.C. §81et
seq., and the regulations promulgated thereunder, 17 CF.R. §§ 1 er seu'. |

8. Defendant Joseph P. Foley (“F oley™) resides, upon info mation and belief, in

2
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Monticello, Illinois.

9, Foley was employed by American Electric Power Cimpany, Inc. and its
subsidiary and trading arm, AEP Energy Services, Inc. (collectively “AEP™), located in
Columbus, Ohjo, from September 1998 unti] October 2002..

10.  Foley traded in the natural £as markets and supervise 4 other natural gas traders,
as the head of AEP’s Gulf Desk, from approximately November 1949 unti] the termination of his
employment at AEP in October 2002. Foley was registered with the National Futufes
Association as a Commodity Trading Advisor (NFA #325087) from November 2002 through
March 2004.

IV. Facts

A. The Natural Gas Price Indexes and Foley’s Natur: | Gas Trading

11. During the Relevant Period, natural gas was a commo lity that was typicﬁa_lly
transported in interstate commerce through a network of pipelines ac:oss the United States.

12.  During the Relevant Period, AEP sought to buy and s¢ [l natural gas for profit. To
that end, AEP’s traders, including Foley, entered into transactiong inv olving the actual physical
delivery of natural gas (“physical trades™) and traded financial deriva Ives, such as basis trades, -
involving natural gas (“financial trades”).

13. Physical trades were typically priced with either a fixei| price set at the time of the
transaction or based on an index to be set at a later date. Financial trac es were also typically
priced based on an index value set after the trades wére executed. |

4. Foley was the head of ABP’s Gulf Desk and supervisor of the desk’s natural gas
traders,

15.  Foley, and the traders assigned to his Gulf Desk, traded a variety of instruments,

3
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including physical natural gas and financial natural gas derivatives. Many of Foley’s natural gas
trades were priced based on index valuyes.

16.  During the Relevant Period, natural gas price indexe: were compiled and issued
by firms such as Platts, a division of Tlie McGraw-Hill Companies. The indexes, which were
widely used by the natural gas industry during the Relevant Period, include Platts’ Gas Daily and
Inside FERC Gas Market Report (“IFERC "). Gas Daily is a daily i \dex that provides natural
gas market information and price indexes for various natural gas huta. JFERC issues a monthly
index for varions natural gas hubs.

17. During the Relevant Period, natural gas traders and triding companjés reported
natural gas market information o companies that calcnlated natural ¢ as price indexes. The
reported market information typically included price and volume inft rmation for natural gas
transactions entered into for delivery at a specific pricing/delivery loc ation or hub.

18.  The price index compilers use price and volume infor nation collected from
market participants, including the Defendant, in calcnlating indexes ¢ f natural gas prices for
various hubs throughout the United States.

19.  During the Relevant Period, participants in the natural gas markets used the Gas
Daily and JFERC price indexes for various purposes, including the pr cing and settlement of
index trades. Moreover, natural gas traders referred to indexes for pri ;e discovery and for
assessing price risks.

20.  The price and volume information reported to the inde: : compilers was market
information that affects or tends to affect the price of natural gas, a co. nmodity in interstate
commerce.

21.  During the Relevant Period, Foley participated in and r :ceived compensation
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under a bonus compensation planAcalled the “Phaﬁtom Equity Plan’ that was based on ﬁe
income of AEP. To the extent that AEP’s income, including incom : from natural gas trades,
rose, Foley was eligible to receive greater compensation under the F hantom Equity Plan,

22.  In 2002, AEP distributed over $200 million to the PF antom Equity Plan
participants. ‘Foley’s participation interest under the Phantom Equit ¢ Plan was over $2 million,

B. Foley Caused The Submission of False or Mislead ing or Knowingly
Inaccurate Trades To Compilers of Natural Gas Price Inde; es

23. Duﬁng the Relevant Period, upon information and be lief, Defendant engagedina |
pervasive and widespread scheme 1o violate the Act by (i) directing 1 hose he supervised to
deliver to firms such as Platts, by facsimile and via the Intemet, fals¢ or misleading or
knowingly inaccurate reports concerning market information about purported natural gas trades
that affects or tends to affect the price of natural gas, and (ii) by atter ipting to manipulate the
price of naturél £as, 2 commodity in interstate commerce, by directin i those he supérvised to
deliver such false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate information

24.  During the Relevant Period, Defendant executed inde: ~based natura] gas trades,
the profitability of which was dependent upon the Gas Daily and IFE RC price indexes.
Defendant routinely knowingly caused traders that he supervised to d :liver false or misleading
or kmowingly inaccurate reports of fransaction information to Gas Dav'.‘ly and JFERC regarding
natural gas pricing/delivery locations at which he had entered into suc h index-based trades.
Defendant did so with the intent to manipulate the indexes to increase the profitability of his
index-based trades.

25.  Aspart of Defendant’s scheme, the Gulf Desk, at Defe 1dant’s direction,

maintained computer spreadsheets named “IFERC Bogus™ and “Joe Mama™ to record
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Defendant’s index-based trades for the purpose of preparing reports to Gas Daily and IFERC
containing false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate transaction information.

26.  During the Relevant Period, Gas Daily gathered fron. market participants,
including AEP’s traders, transaction information concerning physic: |, fixed-price natural gas
transactions and calculated a volume weighted average price index for natural gas
pricing/delivery locations.

27.  Defendant knowingly directed traders he supervised t» deliver reports concerning
purported trades to Gas Daily during the Relevant Period, lmowing 1 1at a substantial portion of
‘which were false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate,

28 During the Relevant Period JFERC sought transactior information regarding
natural gas trades, specifically reports of a company’s fixed-price bas aeload deals negotiated
during bidweek. A baseload deal is a trade reqllirihg the delivery of . specific quantity of
natural gas on each day of the following month. Bidweel refers to th last five trading days of
each month.

29. From at least November 2000 through October 2002, : t the Defendant’s direction
Defendant’s Gulf Desk submitted twenty-two spreadsheets to IFERC reporting thousands of
natural gas trades purportedly made during bidweek.

30.  Each spreadsheet submitted to JFERC contained data {r purported trades at the
natural gas hubs that the Gulf Desk traded, including the Henry Hub, ‘vhich Defendant knew to
be false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate. The Henry Hub is the delivery paint for the
natural gas futures contract traded on the New York Mercantile Bxche nge.

31.  During the Relevant Period, the Gulf Desk, at Defenda it’s direction, knowingly
reported thousands of purporied trades to JFERC, most of which, as Dzfendant knew, were false

6



SEP-14-2005 WED 04:47 P FAK NO. : P. 10

or misleading or knowingly inaccurate.

32.  Such false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate rej.orts concerning market
information or conditions affects or tends to affect the market price >f natural gas, a commodity
in interstate commerce.

33.  Defendant’s attempted manipulation of the price of r atural gas, if successful,
could have affected the price of natural gas futures contracts.

34.  In October 2002, Defendant was fired for false reporting when AEP publicly
admitted that certain of its employees, including the Defendant, engiiged in inaccurate reporting
of natural gas trades to firms that compile natural gas price indexes.

V. Violations Of The Commaodity Exchange Act

Count I: Causing The Delivery Of False or Mis eading or
Knowingly Inaceurate Information

35.  Paragraphs 1 through 34 are realleged and incorporatid herein by reference,

36.  Itisaviolation of Section 9(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C § 13(a)(2), for any person,
inter alia, “knowingly to deliver or cause to be delivered for transmi :sion through the mails or
interstate commerce by telegraph, telephone, wireless, or other mean; of communication false or
misleading or knowingly inaccurate reports conceming crop or mark it information or conditions
that affect or tend to affect the price of any commodity in interstate ¢ smmerce , . .”

37.  Defendant violated Section 9(a)(2) of the Act when he lmowingly directed those
he supervised to deliver by facsimile and via the Internet reports to G as Daily and IFERC
containing market information which Defendant Jmew to be false or1 nisleading or knowingly
inaccurate, including brice and volume information for purported nat iral gas trades.

38.  Such false or misleading or knowingly inaccurate repc rts concerning market
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information or conditions affected or tended to affect the market pri:e of natural gas, a
commodity in interstate commerce. |

39.  Each and every act or transaction engaged in by Defe ndant, as described above, is
alleged herein as a separate and distinct violation of Section 9(a)(2) »f the Act, 7U.S.C. §
13(a)(2).

Count [[:_Attempted Mani ion Of " ural C!as Price Indexes
40.  Paragraphs 1 through 39 are realleged and incorporatid herein by reference.
41.  Sections 6(c), 6(d) and 9(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §6§ 9, 13b and 13(a)(2), make

it illegal for any person to attempt to manipulate the market price of iny commodity in interstate

commerce.

42.  Defendant had the intent to manipulate natural gas index prices and overtly acted
in furtherance of that intent.

43.  Defendant attempted to manipulate natural gas price { \dexes by knowingly
directing those he supervised to deliver false or misleading or knowi igly inaccurate reports of
natural gas trades to firms that compile natural gas price indexes.

44,  Each and every act or transaction engaged in by the D :fendant in firtherance of
the rnanipulative scheme, as described above, is alleged herein as a s parate and distinct
violation of Sections 6éc), 6(d), and 9(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 9, 13b, and 13(2)(2).

VL. Relief Requeéted

WHEREFORRE, Plaintiff Commission respectfully requests thut this Court enter an order
of permanent injunction:

A, restraining and enjoining the Defendant from violating Sections 6(c), 6(d), and

9(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 9, 13b, and 13(a)(2);
' 8
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B. directing the Defendaﬁt 1o pay a civil monetary penal y, to be assessed by.the
Court, in an amount not to exceed the higher of $110,000 before Oc ober 23, 2000 and $120,000
for each violation occurring on or after October 23, 2000, or triple t e monetary gain to the
Defendant for each violation of the Act, as described llérein;

C. directing the Defendant to make full restitution of fur ds received by hifn asa
result of acts and practices which constituted violations of the Act ar d Regulations, as described
herein, and interest thereon from the date of such violations;

D. permanently prohibiting Defendant from trading on o-- subject to the rules of any
entity registered with the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commis: ion;

E. directing the Defendant to disgorge, pursuant to such “irocedure as the Court may
order, all benefits received, directly or indirectly, from acts or practic 3s which can#titute
violations of the Act as described herein, including pre-judgment int¢ rest thereon from the date
of such violations; and

F. providing for all costs, attorney’s fees incurred by Plai ntiff, and such other and

further remedial and ancillary relief as this Court may deem necessar,/ and appropriate.

Dated: September 14, 2005
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Respectfully submitted,

Gregory G. Lockhart
United States Attorney

Southern Zistn‘ct of (70

By: / /4 %

Andrew M. Klalek (0061442)

Assistant United States Attorney

Southern District of Ohio, East :rm Division
303 Marconi Blvd., Ste. 200

Columbus, Ohia 43215

(614) 469-5715

(614) 469-5240 (fax)

E-mail: Andrew Malek@usdo .gov

Stpko gl LoAaal L)

Stephen J. Obie, Regiokél Cotl 1sél

Lenel Hickson, Jr., Deputy Reg ional Counsel
David W. MacGregor, Chief T ial Attorney
Gregory Compa, Trial Attorney

Division of Enforcement

S Commodity Futures Tradiny Commission
140 Broadway

New York, NY 10005

I(646) 746-9733

(646) 746-9940 (fax)

E-mail: Geompa@cfic.gov

10

.13



